
SUMMERVILLE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
AUGUST 2, 2023 

9:00 A.M.

Special District Services, Inc. 
8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 

Miami, FL 33193 

www.summervillecdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free
561.630.4923 Facsimile

http://www.summervillecdd.org/


 
AGENDA 

SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Kendall Executive Center 

8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 
 Miami, Florida 33193 

Call-In: 877-402-9753 Access ID: 8338134 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

August 2, 2023 
9:00 a.m. 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Appointment of Supervisors to Vacant Seats (Seats 2 and 4) 

E. Administer Oath of Office and Review New Board Member Duties 

F. Election of Officers 

 Chairperson 
 Vice Chairperson 
 Secretary/Treasurer 
 Assistant Secretaries 

G. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

H. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

I. Approval of Minutes 

1. May 3, 2023 Regular Board Meeting………………………………………………………….Page 2 

J. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………....Page 7 

2. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-05 - Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget………..Page 8 

K. Old Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Park Rules Signage…………………………………………………….Page 15 

L. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Sidewalk Pressure Cleaning…………………………………………....Page 16 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2023-06 – Records Retention Policy Adoption……………………..Page 17 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-07 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule…..Page 21 

4. Consider Appointment of Audit Committee & Approval of Evaluation Criteria……………...Page 23 

M. Administrative & Operational Matters 

1. Update Regarding Statement of Financial Interests 2022 Form 1 

N. Board Member and Staff Closing Comments 

O. Adjourn     



Miscellaneous Notices  
Published in Miami Daily Business Review on July 20, 2023 

Location 
Miami-Dade County, Florida 
Notice Text 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF THE 
SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
The Board of Supervisors (the "Board") of the Summerville Community 
Development District (the "District") will hold a Public Hearing and Special 
Board Meeting on August 2, 2023, at 9:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter as the 
meeting can be heard, in the Kendall Executive Center located at 8785 SW 
165th Avenue, Suite 200, Miami, Florida 33193. 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on the 
District's Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Final Budget and Non-Ad Valorem 
Assessment Roll. A copy of the Proposed Final Budget and/or the Agenda may 
be obtained from the District's website or at the offices of the District 
Manager, 8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200, Miami, Florida 33193, during 
normal business hours. The purpose of the Special Board Meeting is for the 
Board to consider any other District business which may lawfully and properly 
come before the Board. The meetings are open to the public and will be 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law for community 
development districts. Meetings may be continued as found necessary to a 
time and place specified on the record. 
There may be occasions when one or two Board members will participate by 
telephone; therefore, a speaker telephone will be present at the meeting 
location so that Board members may be fully informed of the discussions 
taking place. 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any 
person requiring special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at 
these meetings should contact the District Manager at 786-247-2700 ext. 2027 
and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922, at least seven (7) days prior to the date of 
the meetings. 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter 
considered at this Public Hearing and Special Board Meeting, such person will 
need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made at their own expense and which 
record includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
Summerville Community Development District 
www.summervillecdd.org 
7/13-20 23-02/0000672306M 
 Page 1



 
SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MAY 3, 2023 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

The May 3, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Summerville Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:02 a.m. in the Kendall Executive Center located at 8785 SW 165 
Avenue, Suite 200, Miami, Florida 33193. 

 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Ms. Nguyen presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Miami Daily Business Review on September 23, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal 
Year 2022/2023 Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Ms. Nguyen determined that the attendance of Vice Chairwoman Barbara Tomas and Supervisors 
Larry Gordon and Bryan Rosales constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the 
meeting. 
 
Staff in attendance included: District Manager Nancy Nguyen of Special District Services, Inc.; and 
General Counsel Ginger Wald of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
 
D. CONSIDER RESIGNATION (LAZARO GONZALEZ/SEAT 4; EFFECTIVE 2/2/23) 
 
Ms. Nguyen stated that she was in possession of a resignation letter from Lazaro Gonzalez with an 
effective date of February 2, 2023, and it would be in order for the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) 
to consider.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Rosales, seconded by Mr. Gordon and unanimously passed accepting the 
resignation of Lazaro Gonzalez, effective February 2, 2023. 
 
Ms. Nguyen stated that there was now a vacancy in Seat #4 which term expires in November 2024. 
Ms. Nguyen reminded the Board that there was also a vacancy in Seat #2 which term expires in 
November 2026.   
 
E. APPOINTMENT OF SUPERVISORS TO VACANT SEATS (SEATS 2 & 4) 
 
This item was not needed at this time.  
 
F. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE AND REVIEW NEW BOARD MEMBER DUTIES 

AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
This item was not needed at this time.  
 
 

Page 2



G. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
As a result of the changes to the Board of the District, Ms. Nguyen recommended that re-election of 
the District’s Officers take place.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Rosales, seconded by Mr. Gordon and unanimously passed electing Ms.. 
Tomas as Chairwoman.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Tomas, seconded by Mr. Rosales and unanimously passed electing Mr. 
Rosales as Vice Chairman.  
 
Ms. Nguyen provided the following slate of names for election:  
 

• Secretary/Treasurer – Nancy Nguyen 
• Assistant Secretaries – Larry Gordon, Armando Silva and Gloria Perez 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Rosales, seconded by Ms. Tomas and passed unanimously electing 
District’s Officers, as listed above. 
 
The Board elections are as follows:  
 

• Chairwoman – Barbara Tomas 
• Vice Chairman – Bryan Rosales  
• Secretary/Treasurer – Nancy Nguyen 
• Assistant Secretaries – Larry Gordon, Armando Silva and Gloria Perez 

 
H. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 
Ms. Nguyen advised that she would like to add the following item to the agenda:  
 

• Administrative & Operational Matters, Item 2. Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – 
Authorizing Electronic Approval & Check Signers 
 

The Board acknowledged Ms. Nguyen’s request.  
 
I. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
J. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  1.  February 1, 2023, Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing 
 
Ms. Nguyen presented the minutes of the February 1, 2023, Regular Board Meeting and Public 
Hearing and asked if there were any changes. 
 
There being no changes, a motion was made by Mr. Rosales, seconded by Mr. Gordon and passed 
unanimously approving the minutes of the February 1, 2023, Regular Board Meeting and Public 
Hearing, as presented. 
 

Page 3



K. OLD BUSINESS 
1. Approval of Engineering Agreement 

 
Ms. Nguyen presented an Engineering Agreement and reminded the Board that during the February 
1, 2023, meeting they had approved an adjustment to the engineering fee structure. Ms. Nguyen stated 
that due to the changes in the fee structure, it would be in order to have an Agreement in place. Ms. 
Nguyen stated that District Counsel had already reviewed this Agreement.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Rosales, seconded by Mr. Gordon and unanimously passed approving 
the Engineering Agreement.     
 
L. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed 
Budget 

 
Ms. Nguyen presented Resolution No. 2023-03, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET AND NON-AD VALOREM 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Nguyen explained that she was contacted by the HOA Manager and Mr. Tomas regarding an 
increase in HOA contributions from the District. As such, Ms. Nguyen provided two (2) Proposed 
Budget scenarios. Scenario 2 provides for an increase to the HOA contribution for landscaping budget 
line in the amount of approximately $15,960 (30% of HOA landscaping contract), as well as an increase 
in the HOA contribution for the street lights in the amount of $4,200. Ms. Nguyen stated that these 
changes would require an increase in assessments in the amount of approximately $80. Board members 
were reminded that whether the HOA of the District pay for the landscaping, the funds are still coming 
from the homeowners. Ms. Nguyen presented Scenario 1 and stated that this scenario will keep the 
contribution amount for landscaping the same and does not require an assessment increase. Ms. Nguyen 
stated that as part of Resolution No. 2023-03, the Board must set a date for the public hearing to adopt 
the fiscal year 2023/2024 final budget and assessment roll. A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Tomas, seconded by Mr. Rosales and unanimously passed to approve and 
adopt Resolution No. 2023-03 Scenario 1, as amended (combining the Lawn 
Maintenance/Irrigation/Open Tracts and Maintenance Contingency budget lines and moving $4,200 
from this budget line to the HOA Contribution (Street Lights) budget line), setting the public hearing 
to adopt the fiscal year 2023/2024 final budget and assessments for August 2, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. in the 
Kendall Executive Center located at 8785 SW 165 Avenue, Suite 200, Miami, Florida 33193; and 
further authorizes publication/notice of the budget public hearing, as required by law. 
 

2. Discussion Regarding Sidewalk Trip Hazards 
 
Ms. Nguyen informed the Board that she had received several calls regarding trip hazards throughout 
the community. Ms. Nguyen stated that an inspection of the sidewalks was conducted and there were 
nineteen (19) trip hazards on District owned sidewalks and over seventy (70) trip hazards on county 

Page 4



owned sidewalks. Ms. Nguyen stated that in an effort to avoid any liability for the District, she 
engaged Raptor Vac-Systems, Inc. to mill the 19 trip hazards on District owned sidewalks in the 
amount of $90 per location (an increase of approximately $1 per location as compared to last year).  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Rosales, seconded by Mr. Gordon and unanimously passed ratifying the 
District Managers’ actions and further authorizing District Counsel to prepare an Agreement, and for 
the District Manager to execute such Agreement.  
 
M. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 

1. Statement of Financial Interest 2022 Form 1 – Filing Deadline: July 1, 2023 
 
The Board Members were reminded of the importance of completing and mailing to the Supervisor 
of Elections within the County of residency their individual 2022 Statement of Financial Interests 
Form 1. The deadline for submittal is July 1, 2023.  
 

2. ADD-ON: Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 Authorizing Electronic Approvals & 
Check Signers 

 
Resolution No. 2023-04 was presented, entitled:  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SUMMERVILLE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF 
A DISTRICT CHECKING/OPERATING ACCOUNT, DESIGNATING DISTRICT 
OFFICIALS AND/OR AUTHORIZED STAFF TO REVIEW, APPROVE AND ISSUE 
PAYMENT OF EXPENDITURES, SELECTING THE SIGNATORIES THEREOF; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Nguyen advised that due to the Board of Supervisors changes, it would be in order to designate 
a new District Official as an authorized electronic approver and re-elect authorized District Staff as 
electronic approvers and check signers. The flowing slate of names were suggested: 
 

• Todd Wodraska 
• Jason Pierman 
• Patricia LasCasas  
• Nancy Nguyen 
• Barbara Tomas 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Rosales, seconded by Mr. Gordon and unanimously passed approving 
and adopting Resolution No. 2023-04, designating the authorized electronic approvers and check 
signers, as listed above.  
 
N. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
The Board inquired as to whose responsibility it was to trim the trees in the community. Ms. Nguyen 
stated that technically, it was the HOA’s responsibility; however, in the previous year, the HOA 
requested that the District be responsible for the trimming of District owned trees. A discussion 
ensued, after which;  
 

Page 5



A motion was made by Mr. Rosales, seconded by Ms. Tomas and unanimously passed authorizing 
the District Manager to have the trees and palm trees trimmed for a not to exceed amount that is 
within the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget.  
 
O. ADJOUNRMENT 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Rosales, 
seconded by Ms. Tomas and unanimously passed adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 
approximately 9:38 a.m. 

 
 
 

 
____________________________               ____________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary               Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 6



Miscellaneous Notices  
Published in Miami Daily Business Review on July 20, 2023 

Location 
Miami-Dade County, Florida 
Notice Text 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF THE 
SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
The Board of Supervisors (the "Board") of the Summerville Community 
Development District (the "District") will hold a Public Hearing and Special 
Board Meeting on August 2, 2023, at 9:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter as the 
meeting can be heard, in the Kendall Executive Center located at 8785 SW 
165th Avenue, Suite 200, Miami, Florida 33193. 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on the 
District's Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Final Budget and Non-Ad Valorem 
Assessment Roll. A copy of the Proposed Final Budget and/or the Agenda may 
be obtained from the District's website or at the offices of the District 
Manager, 8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200, Miami, Florida 33193, during 
normal business hours. The purpose of the Special Board Meeting is for the 
Board to consider any other District business which may lawfully and properly 
come before the Board. The meetings are open to the public and will be 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law for community 
development districts. Meetings may be continued as found necessary to a 
time and place specified on the record. 
There may be occasions when one or two Board members will participate by 
telephone; therefore, a speaker telephone will be present at the meeting 
location so that Board members may be fully informed of the discussions 
taking place. 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any 
person requiring special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at 
these meetings should contact the District Manager at 786-247-2700 ext. 2027 
and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922, at least seven (7) days prior to the date of 
the meetings. 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter 
considered at this Public Hearing and Special Board Meeting, such person will 
need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made at their own expense and which 
record includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
Summerville Community Development District 
www.summervillecdd.org 
7/13-20 23-02/0000672306M 
 Page 7



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING AND ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR FINAL 
2023/2024 BUDGET INCLUDING NON-AD VALOREM SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Summerville Community Development District (the “District”) has 
prepared a Proposed Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 and 
has held a duly advertised Public Hearing to receive public comments on the Proposed Budget 
and Final Special Assessment Roll; and 
 
 WHEREAS, following the Public Hearing and the adoption of the Proposed Budget and 
Final Assessment Roll, the District is now authorized to levy non-ad valorem assessments upon 
the properties within the District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT:  
 
 Section 1. The Final Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted by the Board, and the 
assessments set forth therein shall be levied. 
 
 Section 2. The Secretary of the District is authorized to execute any and all necessary 
transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as necessary, to comply with 
the intent of this Resolution. 
  

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 2nd day of August, 2023 
 

 
ATTEST: SUMMERVILLE 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice Chair 
 

Page 8



    Summerville
   Community Development District

     Final Budget For
      Fiscal Year 2023/2024

       October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



PARK HOURS: SUNRISE TO SUNSET
RULES AND REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO PARKS AND OPEN SPACES: 

•ON-LEASH PETS PERMITTED IN PARK
•REMOVAL OR DAMAGE TO NATURAL RESOURCES IS PROHIBITED
•LITTERING & DUMPING OF ANY KIND IS PROHIBITED 
•FIREWORKS AND FIRE ARE PROHIBITED
•ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ARE PROHIBITED 
•SMOKING AND VAPING ARE PROHIBITED
•SKATEBOARDS, BICYCLES, SCOOTERS, ETC. ARE PROHIBITED
•MOTORIZED VEHICLES ARE PROHIBITED
•CAUSING A NUISANCE IS PROHIBITED
•SOLICITING IS PRHIBITED 
•GLASS CONTAINERS ARE PROHIBITED
•FIREARMS AND OTHER WEAPONS ARE PROHIBITED
•OBSCENE LANGUAGE IS PROHIBITED
•GAMBLING IS PROHIBITED 
•AMPLIFIED SOUNDS, WHICH MAY BE CONSIDERED A NUISANCE  ARE PROHIBITED
•BOUNCE HOUSES, TENTS, TARPS, OR OTHER SIMILAR DEVICES ARE PROHIBITED 
•PRIVATE PARTIES ARE PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE 
DISTRICT

ALL PERSONS USING THE PARKS AND OPEN SPACES ARE EXPECTED TO CONDUCT THEMSELVES IN A RESPONSIBLE, COURTEOUS AND SAFE MANNER IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL 
APPLICABLE RULES OF THE SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”) AND MIAMI-DADE COUNTY.

RULES AND REGULATIONS ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DISTRICT PARK AND OPEN SPACE RULES. VIOLATION OF ONE OR MORE OF THESE RULES MAY RESULT IN 
EXPULSION FROM THE PARK AND OPEN SPACES.

THE DISTRICT IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY LOSS OR DAMAGE TO ANY PRIVATE PROPERTY USED OR STORED IN PARKS AND OPEN SPACES.

ANY PERSON WHO IN ANY MANNER MAKES USE OF PARKS AND OPEN SPACES OR ANY DISTRICT EQUIPMENT OR OTHER STRUCTURES WITHIN PARKS AND OPEN SPACES DOES SO AT 
THEIR OWN RISK.
EVERY PERSON SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY PROPERTY DAMAGE AND/OR PERSONAL INJURY AT PARKS AND OPEN SPACES, CAUSED BY SUCH PERSON.

FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF RULES AND REGULATIONS, PLEASE VISIT WWW.SUMMERVILLECDD.ORG

Page 15



The Pressure Cleaning Man inc.
Estimate

For: Summerville CDD
rquiroga@sdsinc.org

Estimate No: 1945
Date: 07/20/2023

Description Amount

Pressure cleaning of 

1. Sidewalks approximately 10921 linear feet

$5,460.50 

Pressure cleaning of 

1. Sidewalks approximately 2,886 linear feet

$1,093.00 

Pressure cleaning of 

- Curbs and gutters 16,394LF

$3,200.00 

Subtotal $9,753.50
Total $9,753.50

Total $9,753.50

Notes
Pricing may change if job specifications/materials change. 

Pressure washing ground work does NOT remove any gum, rust stains, tire marks, or oil stains unless specified otherwise in estimate content.
The above mention require to be treated with special chemicals/techniques. 

ESTIMATE
 

13476 SW 22nd Street
Miramar, FL 33027
Thepressurecleaningman@gmail.com
www.thepressurecleaningman.com 
Cell: (954)328-8964 
License Dade County No. 14BS00064
License Broward County No. 11-RP-17299-X
Office number (954)995-2356

1 / 2
Page 16



RESOLUTION 2023-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF A RECORDS 
MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; PROVIDING THE DUTIES 
OF THE RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; 
ADOPTING A RECORDS RETENTION POLICY; DETERMINING 
THE ELECTRONIC RECORD TO BE THE OFFICIAL RECORD; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Summerville Community Development District (the “District”) is 
a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt rules to 
govern the administration of the District and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for 
the conduct of District business; and 

WHEREAS, Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, requires the District to establish 
and maintain an active and continuing program for the economical and efficient 
management of records and to provide for the appointment of a records management 
liaison officer (“Records Management Liaison Officer”); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires for the Records Management Liaison Officer to be 
an employee of the District or an employee of the District Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to authorize the District’s records custodian to 
appoint a Records Management Liaison Officer, which may or may not be the District’s 
records custodian; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to prescribe duties of the Records Management 
Liaison Officer and provide for the assignment of additional duties; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) finds that it is in the 
best interests of the District to adopt by resolution a records retention policy (the 
“Records Retention Policy”) for immediate use and application. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

SECTION 1. The District hereby authorizes the District’s records custodian to 
appoint a Records Management Liaison Officer and report such appointment to the 
appropriate State of Florida agencies.  A Records Management Liaison Officer shall be 
an employee of the District or the District Manager.  The Board, and the District’s 
records custodian, shall each have the individual power to remove the Records 

Page 17



Management Liaison Officer at any time for any reason.  Immediately following the 
removal or resignation of a Records Management Liaison Officer, the District’s records 
custodian shall appoint a replacement Records Management Liaison Officer. 

SECTION 2. The duties of the Records Management Liaison Officer shall 
include the following: 

A. Serve as the District’s contact with the Florida Department of State, State 
Library and Archives of Florida; 

B. Coordinate the District’s records inventory;  

C. Maintain records retention and disposition forms;  

D. Coordinate District records management training;  

E. Develop records management procedures consistent with the Records 
Retention Policy, as amended as provided herein;  

F. Participate in the development of the District’s development of electronic 
record keeping systems;  

G. Submit annual compliance statements;  

H. Work with the Florida Department of State, State Library and Archives of 
Florida to establish individual retention schedules for the District, from time 
to time and as may be necessary; and 

I. Such other duties as may be assigned by the Board or the District’s records 
custodian in the future. 

SECTION 3. The District hereby adopts as its Records Retention Policy the 
applicable provisions of Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, the rules adopted by the 
Division of Library and Information Services of the Department of State (“Division”) 
pursuant to Section 257.36, Florida Statutes, and the General Records Schedules 
established by the Division.  However, the District will retain certain records longer than 
required by the General Records Schedules established by the Division as set forth in 
Exhibit A.  To the extent the above statute, rules or schedules are amended or 
supplemented in the future, the District’s Records Retention Policy shall automatically 
incorporate such amendment or supplement provided that such automatic amendment 
shall not reduce the retention times set forth in Exhibit A.  The Records Retention Policy 
shall remain in full force and effect until such time as the Board amends the Policy. 

SECTION 4. In accordance with section 668.50, Florida Statutes, and section 
119.01, Florida Statutes, the Board finds that the electronic record shall be considered the 
official record and any paper originals are hereby duplicates which may be disposed of 
unless required to be preserved by any applicable statute, rule or ordinance. 

Page 18



SECTION 5.   If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, 
the other provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 6. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage; shall 
replace, supplant, and supersede any prior policy or resolution of the District regarding 
records retention; and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the District Board of Supervisors, this 2nd 
day of August, 2023. 

ATTEST:     SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
 
Print name: ___________________  Print name: __________________________ 
       Secretary / Assistant Secretary                       Chair / Vice Chair 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Amendments to General Records Schedules Established by the Division 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 
Exhibit A 

 
Amendments to General Records Schedules established by the Division 

 
ADVERTISEMENTS: LEGAL (Item #25) 
The District shall retain mailed and published legal advertisements, and corresponding affidavits, relating 
to proceedings under uniform method of collection of debt assessments permanently.  The District shall 
retain mailed and published legal advertisements, and corresponding affidavits, relating to the levy of 
assessments securing bonds for five (5) fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released, or until 
three (3) calendar years after related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
AUDITS: INDEPENDENT (Item #56) 
The District shall retain the record copy of independent audits for ten (10) fiscal years or until three (3) 
calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
DISBURSEMENT RECORDS:  DETAIL (Item #340) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for five (5) 
fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after related 
bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
DISBURSEMENT RECORDS:  SUMMARY (Item #341) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for ten (10) 
fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after related 
bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ANNUAL REPORTS (Item #107) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for ten (10) 
fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after all related 
bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
INCIDENT REPORT FILES (Item #241) 
The District shall retain incident reports for five (5) anniversary years from the date of the incident. 
 
MINUTES:  OFFICIAL MEETINGS (PRELIMINARY/AUDIO RECORDINGS/VIDEO RECORDINGS 
(Item #4) 
The District shall retain audio recordings of board of supervisor meetings for five (5) calendar years after 
adoption of the official minutes. 
 
PROJECT FILES:  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT (Item #136) 
The District shall retain the record copy of project files for projects funded with bonds for ten (10) fiscal 
years after completion of the project provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) 
calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
REAL PROPERTY RECORDS:  CONDEMNATION/DEMOLITION (Item #364) 
The District shall retain the record copy of project files for condemnation/demolition projects funded with 
bonds for five (5) anniversary years after final action or until three (3) calendar years after all related bonds 
are redeemed, whichever is later.  The record copy of deeds and easements shall be kept permanently. 
 
REAL PROPERTY RECORDS:  PROPERTY ACQUIRED (Item #172) 
The District shall retain the record copy of documents related to property acquisitions funded with bonds 
for three (3) fiscal years after final disposition of the property provided applicable audits have been 
released or until three (3) calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later.  The 
record copy of deeds and easements shall be kept permanently. 
 

Page 20



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-07 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2023/2024 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Summerville Community Development District (the 

"District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2023/2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the District has set a regular 

meeting schedule, location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2023/2024 which is 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted by the Board. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized by the 

Board to be published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 2nd day of August, 2023. 

 

 
ATTEST: SUMMERVILLE 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice Chair 
 

Page 21



SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the 
Summerville Community Development District (the “District”) will hold Regular Meetings in 
the Kendall Executive Center located at 8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200, Miami, Florida 
33193 at 9:00 a.m. on the following dates: 
 

October 4, 2023 
November 1, 2023 
February 7, 2024 

March 6, 2024 
April 3, 2024 
May 1, 2024 
June 5, 2024 

September 4, 2024 
 

The purpose of the meetings is for the Board to consider any District business which may 
lawfully and properly come before the Board. Meetings are open to the public and will be 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law for Community Development 
Districts. Copies of the Agenda for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s 
website or by contacting the District Manager at nnguyen@sdsinc.org and/or toll free at 1-877-
737-4922, prior to the date of the particular meeting. 
 
From time to time one or two Board members may participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker 
telephone will be present at the meeting location so that Board members may be fully informed 
of the discussions taking place. Said meeting(s) may be continued as found necessary to a time 
and place specified on the record. 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact 
the District Manager at nnguyen@sdsinc.org and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) 
days prior to the date of the particular meeting. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time with no advertised notice. 
 
SUMMERVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.summervillecdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  MIAMI DAILY BUSINESS REVIEW 9/22/23 

Page 22

mailto:nnguyen@sdsinc.org
mailto:nnguyen@sdsinc.org
http://www.summervillecdd.org/


Ability of Personnel (10 Points). 

Proposer’s Experience (10 Points). 

Understanding of Scope of Work (10 Points). 

Ability to Furnish the Required Services (10 Points). 

Price (10 Points). 

Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26


	Summerville Community Development District - August 2, 2023 Special Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	May 3, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget

	Discussion Regarding Park Rules Signage
	Discussion Regarding Sidewalk Pressure Cleaning
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-06 – Records Retention Policy Adoption
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-07 - Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule
	Consider Appointment of Audit Committee & Approval of Evaluation Criteria




